
   PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Agenda 

Thursday, December 05, 2019 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Call to order 

2. Attendance 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes- November 7, 2019 

Requests 
5. Request by Chad & Meghan Shaw for a side yard setback variance at 260 Anchor Pointe 

Drive. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 053B, Parcel 004, District 4].  

6. Request by Jonathan Hill, agent for Yancy & Angela Houston for a side yard setback 

variance at 236 Eagles Way. Presently zoned RM-3. [Map 103B, Parcel 043026, District 

3].  

7. Request by Gene Holder to rezone 10.23 acres at 341 Firetower Road from AG-1 to R-

2. [Map 002 Parcel 014003, District 1]. * 

8. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr. agent for Millicent Arnold & Lawrence A. Copelan 

Jr. to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 030, District 

3]. *  

9. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for HJR Oconee, LLC to rezone 50.8 acres on 

Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3]. *  

10. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold & L.A. Copelan Jr. to 

rezone 0.63 acres on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 3]. *  

11. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold &L.A. Copelan Jr. to 

rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3]. *  

 

New Business 
Adjournment 

 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commissioners agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 

P.M., in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, GA  31024. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

1



The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event 

the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members 

of the public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established 

in O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 

706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

  

2



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
4. Approval of Minutes- November 7, 2019 

  

3



 

 

Draft Minutes 

November 7, 2019 

   PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

Minutes 

 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on Thursday, 

November 7, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Member Martha Farley called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Attendance 

Mr. Jonathan Gladden called the roll. 

 

PRESENT:  

Member Joel Hardie 

Member Maurice Hill, Jr. (not eligible for voting due to training requirements) 

Member Martha Farley 

Member Tim Pierson 

 

ABSENT: 

Chairman James Marshall, Jr. 

 

STAFF: 

Lisa Jackson 

Courtney Andrews 

Jonathan Gladden 

 

3. Rules of Procedures 

Ms. Courtney Andrews read the Rules of Procedures. 

 

Minutes 
4. Approval of Minutes – October 3, 2019 

  

5. Request by Chris & Heather Willis, agents for Richard Delisle for a rear yard setback 

variance at Lot 32 Rockville Springs Court. Presently zoned R-1. [Map 127A, Parcel 010, 

District 3].  Mr. Willis represented this request. He stated that he and his wife are retired and 

want to build their retirement home on the lake. Mr. Willis stated that they withdrew their 

original variance request due to the discovery of the well on both adjacent lots. He added that 

they had to redesign the septic fields and move their structure back from the lake. With help 

from the Health Department, they were able to change the location of the proposed home. 

Mr. Willis stated that they reduced the building area by 25% and the home would be 

positioned 120 feet from the nearest point to the lake on the left side. The side where the inlet 

is located, makes the proposed structure 53 feet where it dips into the lot. There were some 

4



 

 

Draft Minutes 

November 7, 2019 

star soils that could not be touched that were discovered in the soils report making the 

foundation difficult to use.  

 

Mr. Miller Edwards spoke in opposition of this request. 

 

Ms. Lisa Jackson, Director of Planning and Development, stated that the applicant was 

asking to be 52 feet from the nearest point to the lake. However, upon visiting the site and 

speaking with Kathryn Hill at the Putnam County Health Department, there is room for the 

proposed structure to be slightly pushed back so that they can be at least 60 feet from the 

nearest point to the lake. 

 

 Although the applicants are seeking a 48-foot rear yard setback variance, being 52 feet 

from the nearest point to the lake, staff recommendation is for approval of a 40-foot 

rear yard setback variance, being 60 feet from the nearest point to the lake at Lot 32 

Rockville Springs Court [Map 127A, Parcel 010, District 3]. 

  

 Motion to approve the request by Chris & Heather Willis, agents for Richard Delisle, per 

staff recommendation, for a 40-foot rear yard setback variance being 60 feet from the nearest 

point to the lake at Lot 32 Rockville Springs Court made by Member Hardie, Seconded by 

Member Pierson 

 Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 

6. Request by Jeff Treadway for a rear yard setback variance at Lot 3 East Riverbend Court. 

Presently zoned R-1. [Map 119C, Parcel 080, District 3]. Mr. Treadway represented this 

request. He stated that he currently lives in Macon but wants to retire to this half acre lake lot. 

He added that this is a very small lot and all the good soil for the septic tank is located 

towards the road. Mr. Treadway stated that the proposed house will be 1,900 square foot. He 

further stated that in order to build the house with the septic system on the front side of the 

property, a 25-foot variance is needed.  No one spoke in opposition of this request. 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval of a 25-foot rear yard setback variance, being 75 

feet from the nearest point to the lake at Lot 3 East Riverbend Court [Map 119C, Parcel 

080, District 3]. 

 

 

 Motion to approve the request by Jeff Treadway for a 25-foot rear yard setback variance, 

being 75 feet from the nearest point to the lake at Lot 3 East Riverbend Court made by 

Member Hardie, Seconded by Member Pierson 

 Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 

7. Request by Ronnie & Lynn Smith for a side yard setback variance at 108 Sunset Drive. 

Presently zoned R-2. [Map 053B, Parcel 056, District 4].  The applicants would like to 

withdraw without prejudice. 
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to withdraw without prejudice at 108 Sunset 

Drive [Map 053B, Parcel 056, District 4]. 

 

5



 

 

Draft Minutes 

November 7, 2019 

Motion to approve the request by Ronnie & Lynn Smith to withdraw without prejudice at 

108 Sunset Drive made by Member Hardie, Seconded by Member Pierson 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 
8. Request by Hugh & Rosemary Foskey for a rear yard setback variance at 115 Little River 

Court. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 058A, Parcel 052, District 4]. Mrs. Foskey represented 

this request. She stated that they moved to Lake Sinclair in 2016 with plans to retire to the 

Lake Sinclair area. She added that when she bought the home in 2016, she was not aware of a 

variance request. Mrs. Foskey stated that they are requesting a variance to extend their back 

deck which currently sits 75 feet from the lake. The extension would be 11.5 feet closer to the 

lake. She described that she has double stairwells that lead to the deck that she believes is a 

safety issue. Member Pierson asked for clarification of the submitted photo of the current 

deck. Ms. Jackson stated that the picture shows the deck from the stairs. She added that there 

is area to the side of the deck, that is not pictured, that is not developed. Ms. Jackson stated 

that at the site visit, she recommended they extend to the sides instead of further encroaching 

the lake setback for a deck which is not living space but accessory space. Mrs. Foskey stated 

that she had additional pictures if the board would like to see them. Member Hardie asked to 

see the additional photos. 

 

Staff recommendation is for denial for a rear yard setback variance at 115 Little River 

Court [Map 058A, Parcel 052, District 4]. 

 

Motion to deny the request by Hugh & Rosemary Foskey for a 38-foot rear yard setback 

variance being 62 feet from the nearest point to the lake at 115 Little River Court made by 

Member Pierson, Seconded by Member Hardie 

Voting Yea:  Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 

9. Request by Robert Alan Council for a side yard setback variance at 164 Spurgeon Drive. 

Presently zoned R-1. [Map 086C, Parcel 121, District 4]. Mr. Scott Council, agent for 

Robert Alan Council represented this request. He stated that there is a 20-foot setback 

requirement and they are requesting to be 15.4 from both side property lines. There is a 60-

foot singlewide on the property that will be replaced by a 32x52 doublewide. Ms. Jackson 

explained that when staff visited the property and took the measurements based on how the 

property was staked, the left side measured 15 feet and the right side measured 12 feet from 

the side property line. Therefore, staff is recommending   No one spoke in opposition of this 

request.  

  

Although the applicants are seeking a 7-foot side yard setback variance, being 13 feet 

from the left and right side property line, staff recommendation is for approval of a 5-

foot side yard variance being 15 feet from the left side property line, when facing the 

lake, and an 8-foot side yard setback variance being 12 feet from the right side property 

line, when facing the lake at 164 Spurgeon Drive [Map 086C Parcel 121, District 4]. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Robert Alan Council, per staff recommendation, for a side 

yard setback variance being 15 feet from the left side property line, when facing the lake, and 

an 8-foot side yard setback variance being 12 feet from the right side property line, when 

facing the lake at 164 Spurgeon Drive made by Member Hardie, Seconded by Member 

Pierson 

6



 

 

Draft Minutes 

November 7, 2019 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 

10. Request by Beverly Ralston to rezone 13.70 acres at 182 Alexander Road from AG-1 to AG-

2. [Map 096, Parcel 009, District 2]. *  Shelby Collis represented this request. She stated 

that her family has owned this property since the 40’s. She added that her 96-year-old 

grandmother lives with her mom and her plan is to buy 5 acres of the property and build a 

home on it. Mrs. Collis wants to be closer to be able to take care of both her mother and 

grandmother. No one spoke in opposition of this request. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 13.70 acres at 182 Alexander Road 

[Map 096, Parcel 009, District 2] from AG-1 to AG-2. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Beverly Ralston to rezone 13.70 acres from AG-1 to AG-2 

at 182 Alexander Road made by Member Hardie, Seconded by Member Pierson 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 

11. Request by Gary Thompson to rezone 28.85 acres at 123 Beaver Dam Road from AG-1 to 

AG-2. [Map 021, Parcel 007, District 1]. * Mr. Thompson represented this request. He 

stated that someone asked if he would sell 15 acres. He added that the buyer wanted to 

purchase the property to be closer to family. No one spoke in opposition of this request.  

 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 28.85 acres at 123 Beaver Dam [Map 

021, Parcel 007, District 1] from AG-1 to AG-2. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Gary Thompson to rezone 28.85 acres from AG-1 to AG-2 

at 123 Beaver Dam Road made by Member Hardie, Seconded by Member Pierson 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 

12. Request Jason Minchey, Lazarus Investments LLC to rezone 23.38 acres at 116 Napier 

Mill Road from AG-1 to AG-2. [Map 056, Parcel 001, District 4]. * Mr. Minchey 

represented this request. He stated that he originally bought this property to subdivide it. He 

later realized that the only way to subdivide the parcel into 5-acre tracts was to rezone it from 

AG-1 to AG-2. Mr. Minchey stated that the subject property fronts Napier Mill Road, Napier 

Road, and Napier Dr which gives plenty of road frontage for each tract. He added that there is 

a high demand for smaller agriculture tracts in the real-estate business and they intend to 

develop 4 5-acre AG-2 tracts. No one spoke in opposition of this request. 

 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 23.38 acres at 116 Napier Mill Road 

[Map 056, Parcel 001, District 4] from AG-1 to AG-2. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Jason Minchey to rezone 23.38 acres from AG-1 to AG-2 

at 116 Napier Mill Road made by Member Farley, Seconded by Member Pierson 

Voting Yea: Member Farley, Member Pierson, Member Hardie 

 

New Business 

 

Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:19 p.m. 

7



 

 

Draft Minutes 

November 7, 2019 

 

 
 

Attest: 

 

 
 

________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Lisa Jackson      James Marshall, Jr. 

Director      Chairman 

8



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
5. Request by Chad & Meghan Shaw for a side yard setback variance at 260 Anchor Pointe 

Drive. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 053B, Parcel 004, District 4].  

  

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



053B007

053B011

053 033

053B013
053B012

053B001

053B002

053B003

053B004

053B006

053B008

053B009053B010Anchor
Poin

te Dr S
W

R-2

17



18



19



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

November 25, 2019 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 12/5/2019 
 

 

5. Request by Chad & Meghan Shaw for a side yard setback variance at 260 Anchor Pointe 

Drive. Presently zoned R-2. [Map 053B, Parcel 004, District 4]. The applicants are 

requesting a 7-foot side yard; being 13 feet from the right-side property line when facing 

the lake.   They would like to construct a 504 square foot addition to their existing 937 

square foot home. The current home is nonconforming due to the minimum heated floor 

area in a R-2 zoning district being a minimum of 1,000 square feet as stated in Section 66-

85(f) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. The addition would make the home 1,441 

square feet and comply with the code. This is an extremely narrow nonconforming lot with 

a lot length of 539 and the lot width at building setback of 81. The lot width is 50 feet at 

the front and widens to 90.96 feet towards the lake. Upon careful observation of the 

proposal, staff concluded that the applicants could reduce the size of the addition to place 

the addition 15 feet from the right property line instead of the requested 13 feet. Due to the 

extreme narrowness of the nonconforming lot, the suggested location is the best option for 

the proposed addition. Therefore, this request meets the conditions as stated in Putnam 

County, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66-157(c)(1)(2). 

 

 Although the applicants are seeking a 7-foot side yard setback variance, being 13 feet 

from the right side property line when facing the lake, staff recommendation is for 

approval of a 5-foot rear yard setback variance, being 15 feet from the right side 

property line when facing the lake at 260 Anchor Pointe Drive [Map 053B, Parcel 

004, District 4].  

  
 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

20



*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 P.M., 

in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

21



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
6. Request by Jonathan Hill, agent for Yancy & Angela Houston for a side yard setback 

variance at 236 Eagles Way. Presently zoned RM-3. [Map 103B, Parcel 043026, District 

3].  

  

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



103B042

103B041

103B040

103B039

103B038

10
3B

04
30

19

103B043027

103B043026

103B043025

10
3B

04
30

24

10
3B

04
30

23

10
3B

04
30

22

103
B0

430
21

10
3B

04
30

20

103B043048 103
B0

430
31

10
3B

04
30

30

10
3B

04
30

29

10
3B

04
30

28

103B043047

Martin

Oaks Blvd NE

Eagles Run

Eagles Way
R-1R

RM-3

30



31



32



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

November 25, 2019 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 12/5/2019 
 

 

6. Request by Jonathan Hill, agent for Yancy & Angela Houston for a side yard setback 

variance at 236 Eagles Way. Presently zoned RM-3. [Map 103B, Parcel 043026, District 

3].  Item has been removed from the agenda.  

   

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 P.M., 

in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

33



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
7. Request by Gene Holder to rezone 10.23 acres at 341 Firetower Road from AG-1 to R-

2. [Map 002 Parcel 014003, District 1]. * 

  

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



002 019

002 014002

002 021

002 014003

002 016

002
 01

7

002
 01

8
002 020

002 014 002
014001

002
 01

401
1

002
 01

401
2

002
 01

401
3

002
 01

401
4

002
 01

400
6

002
014

007
002

 01
400

8

002
 01

400
9002

 01
401

0

024 001

Rocky Creek Rd SW

Brad

ley Rd SW

Brad
ley

 Rd SW

Firetower Rd

AG-2

R-2

AG-1

43



44



45



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

November 25, 2019 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 12/5/2019 
 

   

7. Request by Gene Holder to rezone 10.23 acres at 341 Firetower Road from AG-1 to R-

2. [Map 002 Parcel 014003, District 1]. * The applicant is requesting to rezone 10.23 

acres in order to cut out 2 acres. This is a nonconforming AG-1 lot and it must be rezoned 

in order to subdivide the parcel. Mr. Holder stated that he and his son currently share a 

home on the 10.23-acre lot. He would like to cut out 2 acres with the existing home for his 

son and place a home on the remaining 8.23 acres for himself. The Putnam County Code 

of Ordinances Section 66-73(a) states that the minimum lot size for AG-1 zoning district is 

20 acres. The proposed R-2 zoning district will allow the applicant to cut out 2 acres for 

residential use.  Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan has this area 

designated for Park/Recreation/Conservation, this is a rural residential area with a 

combination of agricultural and residential parcels. Therefore, the proposed rezoning is 

consistent with the current use of the adjacent parcels and poses no adverse effect to this 

community.  Moreover, this rezoning to R-2 will not adversely impact the use of public 

facilities or services. Likewise, the proposed use is consistent with the stated purpose of 

the R-2 district and will not adversely affect the existing use, value or usability of adjacent 

or nearby properties. 

 

 Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 10.23 acres at 341 Firetower Road 

[Map 002, Parcel 014003, District 1] from AG-1 to R-2. 

  

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 P.M., 
in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 
46



The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

47



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
8. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr. agent for Millicent Arnold & Lawrence A. Copelan 

Jr. to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 030, District 

3]. *  

  

48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



104
 03

0

104 033

104B022

104B065

104B064

10
4 0

24 104 025

104027

104A071

104A072

104A075

104A077
104A078

104A079

104A080

104A081

104A085

104
 02

8

104B083

104B026 104B078
104B079

104B025

104B027
104B028

104B063

104B081

104B030

104B032

104B024

104 032

104
B085

104B086

104
B084

104C015002

10
4C

00
7

104C077

104C078

104C079
104C080

104
C015

001

104 027001

104
A070

001

104A074

104
B0

87

120
001

104A069

104A070

104A049002

104A049

Coll
is R

est
au

ran
t R

d N
E

Collis
 Rd NE

Collis Cir NE

Reynolds Dr NE

Wards Chapel Rd NE
Collis Marina Rd NE

Co
pe

lan
La

ndi

ng Dr NE

Collis Rd NE

R-1

AG-1 RM-3

AG-2

C-2

72



73



74



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

November 25, 2019 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 12/5/2019 

 

8.   Request by Howard McMichael, Jr. agent for Millicent Arnold & Lawrence A. 

Copelan Jr. to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 

030, District 3]. * The applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with three 

adjacent parcels with a total of 57.07 acres from R-1 to RM-3. If approved, the applicant 

would like to combine the four parcels in order to develop a waterfront community. The 

proposed development will consist of a total number of 124 Multi-Family Townhomes 

having the main entrance on Collis Road.  This would add approximately 310 residents to 

the neighborhood. The applicants are proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance 

with the Putnam County Development Codes with townhome and condominium units 

similar to Enclave at Waterfront and Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units. 

Water and sewer are provided by Piedmont Water Resources. According to the applicant, 

the proposed use will place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake 

Oconee, and promote common open space for property owners. 

The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved.   

 

The access point for this development will be Collis Road. Collis Road which is a narrow 

seventeen foot (17 ft) wide two-lane collector road. The minimum width for a county 

collector road is 20 feet. The additional traffic generated from this development 

necessitates widening the entire road to 20 feet beginning at the access point to Wards 

Chapel Road. Adequate right-of-way exists to allow this widening to occur. Collis Road 

terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. Adequate horizontal 

and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel Road for those 

vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards Chapel is 

deficient and will need to be increased to a minimum of 25 ft. to accommodate the 

additional traffic volumes. Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicant, the 

proposed development will increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 

1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 trips per day. Even though Wards Chapel Road was not part 

of the traffic study, the additional 930 trips on Collis Road will significantly impact the 

traffic flow on Wards Chapel Road as well as the character of this neighborhood along 

Collins Marina and adjoining roads.   

 

Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 
75



will continue to occur in this area. Even though the development will have a significant 

impact on the area, the following recommendations will help mitigate these adverse 

impacts.  
  

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 2.14 acres on Collis Road [Map 104, 

Parcel 030, District 3] from R-1 to RM-3 with the following conditions: 

(1) Increase the width of Collis Road from 17 feet to 20 feet commencing at the 

entrance into the proposed development and extending to Wards Chapel Road. 

This includes min. 3 ft wide shoulders, roadside ditch reconstruction, eradication 

of the existing striping followed by re-striping the road centerline. Road widening 

can be symmetrical or asymmetrical to the road centerline as necessary to ensure 

adequate roadway shoulder width and drainage  

(2) Improve the existing radii at the intersection of Collis Road and Wards Chapel 

Road to a minimum of 25 feet. This may require ditch reconstruction and culvert 

extensions. All work can be accomplished within the existing right-of-way. 

(3) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer within the required 50 ft buffer along 

the property line on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 

75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved 

during the development review phase 
(4) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer, within the required 50 ft buffer, along 

the property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels 

on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer 

within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved during the 

development review phase 
(5) Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road 

      this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 

plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 P.M., 

in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 
 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 
76



 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

77



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
9. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for HJR Oconee, LLC to rezone 50.8 acres on 

Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3]. *  

  

78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



104
 03

0

104033

104B001

104A048058

104A048056

104A048055

104A048054

104A048053

104A048052

104A048051

104B020

104B022

104B065

104B064

104
020

104 024

104 025

104027

104A048063

104A048064

104A050

104A051

104A067

104A068 104A087
104A088

104A071

104A072

104A077
104A078

104A079

104A080

104
 02

8

104B083

104B026
104B077104B078104B079

104B025

104B027

10
4B

04
3

104B057
104B058

104B053104B054104B055104B056
104B059

104B060
104B061

104B062
104B063

104B069

104B070

104B071

104B072

104B081

104B030

104B034

104B024
104 032

104B086

104B092

104
B084

104B015001104B002

104B003
104C001

104C002

104C003

104C015002

104C004
104C005104C007

104C077
104C078
104C079

104
C015

001

104A049001

104A074

104
B0

87

120 001

104A069

104A070

104A049002

104A049

Wards Chapel Rd NE

Doug Ln NE

Colli
s R

est
au

ran
t R

d N
E

Collis
 Rd NE

Capps L
n NE

Co
pe

lan
La

ndi
ng Dr NE

Collis
Cir NE

Collis Marina Rd NE

Reynolds Dr NE
Collis Rd NE

R-1

R-1R

AG-1

RM-3

AG-2

C-2

105



106



107



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

November 25, 2019 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 12/5/2019 

 

 

9. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for HJR Oconee, LLC to rezone 50.8 acres 

on Collis Road from AG-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 032, District 3]. * The applicants 

are seeking to rezone this parcel along with three adjacent parcels with a total of 57.07 

acres from R-1 to RM-3. If approved, the applicant would like to combine the four parcels 

in order to develop a waterfront community. The proposed development will consist of a 

total number of 124 Multi-Family Townhomes having the main entrance on Collis 

Road.  This would add approximately 310 residents to the neighborhood. The applicants 

are proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance with the Putnam County 

Development Codes with townhome and condominium units similar to Enclave at 

Waterfront and Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units. Water and sewer are 

provided by Piedmont Water Resources. According to the applicant, the proposed use will 

place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake Oconee, and promote 

common open space for property owners. 
The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved.   

 

The access point for this development will be Collis Road. Collis Road which is a narrow 

seventeen foot (17 ft) wide two-lane collector road. The minimum width for a county 

collector road is 20 feet. The additional traffic generated from this development 

necessitates widening the entire road to 20 feet beginning at the access point to Wards 

Chapel Road. Adequate right-of-way exists to allow this widening to occur. Collis Road 

terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. Adequate horizontal 

and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel Road for those 

vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards Chapel is 

deficient and will need to be increased to a minimum of 25 ft. to accommodate the 

additional traffic volumes. Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicant, the 

proposed development will increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 

1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 trips per day. Even though Wards Chapel Road was not part 

of the traffic study, the additional 930 trips on Collis Road will significantly impact the 

traffic flow on Wards Chapel Road as well as the character of this neighborhood along 

Collins Marina and adjoining roads.   

 

Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 
108



Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 

will continue to occur in this area. Even though the development will have a significant 

impact on the area, the following recommendations will help mitigate these adverse 

impacts.  
  

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 50.8 acres on Collis Road [Map 104, 

Parcel 032, District 3] from AG-1 to RM-3 with the following conditions: 

(1) Increase the width of Collis Road from 17 feet to 20 feet commencing at the 

entrance into the proposed development and extending to Wards Chapel Road. 

This includes min. 3 ft wide shoulders, roadside ditch reconstruction, eradication 

of the existing striping followed by re-striping the road centerline. Road widening 

can be symmetrical or asymmetrical to the road centerline as necessary to ensure 

adequate roadway shoulder width and drainage  

(2) Improve the existing radii at the intersection of Collis Road and Wards Chapel 

Road to a minimum of 25 feet. This may require ditch reconstruction and culvert 

extensions. All work can be accomplished within the existing right-of-way. 

(3) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer within the required 50 ft buffer along 

the property line on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 

75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved 

during the development review phase 

(4) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer, within the required 50 ft buffer, along 

the property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels 

on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer 

within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved during the 

development review phase 

(5) Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road 

      this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 

plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  
 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 P.M., 

in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

109



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

110



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
10. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold & L.A. Copelan Jr. to 

rezone 0.63 acres on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 3]. *  

  

111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



104
 03

3

104B001

104B090

104B091

104B092

104B002

104B003

104B004

104B008

10
4B

00
9

10
4B

09
3

104B094

104B095

104B005
104B006

104B007

Doug Ln NE

R-1

AG-1

136



137



138



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

November 25, 2019 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 12/5/2019 

 

10. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold & L.A. Copelan Jr. to 

rezone 0.63 acres on Doug Lane from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104B, Parcel 001, District 

3]. * The applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with three adjacent parcels with 

a total of 57.07 acres from R-1 to RM-3. If approved, the applicant would like to combine 

the four parcels in order to develop a waterfront community. The proposed development 

will consist of a total number of 124 Multi-Family Townhomes having the main entrance 

on Collis Road.  This would add approximately 310 residents to the neighborhood. The 

applicants are proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance with the Putnam County 

Development Codes with townhome and condominium units similar to Enclave at 

Waterfront and Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units. Water and sewer are 

provided by Piedmont Water Resources. According to the applicant, the proposed use will 

place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake Oconee, and promote 

common open space for property owners. 

The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved.   

 

The access point for this development will be Collis Road. Collis Road which is a narrow 

seventeen foot (17 ft) wide two-lane collector road. The minimum width for a county 

collector road is 20 feet. The additional traffic generated from this development 

necessitates widening the entire road to 20 feet beginning at the access point to Wards 

Chapel Road. Adequate right-of-way exists to allow this widening to occur. Collis Road 

terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. Adequate horizontal 

and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel Road for those 

vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards Chapel is 

deficient and will need to be increased to a minimum of 25 ft. to accommodate the 

additional traffic volumes. Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicant, the 

proposed development will increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 

1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 trips per day. Even though Wards Chapel Road was not part 

of the traffic study, the additional 930 trips on Collis Road will significantly impact the 

traffic flow on Wards Chapel Road as well as the character of this neighborhood along 

Collins Marina and adjoining roads.   

 

Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 
139



will continue to occur in this area. Even though the development will have a significant 

impact on the area, the following recommendations will help mitigate these adverse 

impacts.  
  

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 0.63 acres on Doug Lane [Map 104B, 

Parcel 001, District 3] from R-1 to RM-3 with the following conditions: 

(1) Increase the width of Collis Road from 17 feet to 20 feet commencing at the 

entrance into the proposed development and extending to Wards Chapel Road. 

This includes min. 3 ft wide shoulders, roadside ditch reconstruction, eradication 

of the existing striping followed by re-striping the road centerline. Road widening 

can be symmetrical or asymmetrical to the road centerline as necessary to ensure 

adequate roadway shoulder width and drainage  

(2) Improve the existing radii at the intersection of Collis Road and Wards Chapel 

Road to a minimum of 25 feet. This may require ditch reconstruction and culvert 

extensions. All work can be accomplished within the existing right-of-way. 

(3) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer within the required 50 ft buffer along 

the property line on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 

75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved 

during the development review phase 
(4) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer, within the required 50 ft buffer, along 

the property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels 

on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer 

within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved during the 

development review phase 
(5) Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road 

      this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 

plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  
 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 P.M., 

in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 
 

The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 
140



 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

141



Item Attachment Documents: 

 
11. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold &L.A. Copelan Jr. to 

rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3]. *  

  

142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



104
 03

0

104033

104B001

104A048050

104A048058

104A048056

104A048055

104A048054

104A048053

104A048052

104A048051

104B020

104B022

104B065

104B064104 024

104 025

104027

104A048063

104A048064

104A050

104A052
104A051

104A067 104A089
104A066

104A068
104A087

104A088

104A071

104A072

104A077
104A078

104A079

104A080

104
 02

8

104B083

104B026
104B077104B078104B079

104B025

104B027

10
4B

04
3

104B057
104B058

104B053104B054104B055104B056
104B059104B060

104B061
104B062

104B063

104B069

104B070

104B071

104B072

104B081

104B030

104B034

104B024
104 032

104B086

104B092

104
B084

104B015001104B002

104B008

104C001

104C002

104C003

104C015002

104C004
104C005104C007

104C077

104C079

104
C015

001

104A049001

104A074

104
B015

104
B0

87

120 001

104A069

104A070

104A049002

104A049

Wards Chapel Rd NE
Ca

pp
sL

nN
E Doug Ln NE

Colli
s R

es
tau

ran
t R

d N
E

Collis
 Rd NE

Co
pe

lan
La

ndi
ng Dr NE

Capps L
n NE

Collis
Cir NE

Collis Marina Rd NE

Reynolds Dr NE
Collis Rd NE

R-1

R-1R

AG-1

RM-3

AG-2

C-2

166



167



168



  PUTNAM COUNTY PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite B ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

Tel: 706-485-2776 ◊ 706-485-0552 fax ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

November 25, 2019 

 

 

      TO:        Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

      FROM:  Lisa Jackson 

 

      RE:        Staff Recommendation for Public Hearing Agenda on 12/5/2019 

 

11. Request by Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold &L.A. Copelan Jr. to 

rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road from R-1 to RM-3. [Map 104, Parcel 033, District 3]. * 

The applicants are seeking to rezone this parcel along with three adjacent parcels with a 

total of 57.07 acres from R-1 to RM-3. If approved, the applicant would like to combine 

the four parcels in order to develop a waterfront community. The proposed development 

will consist of a total number of 124 Multi-Family Townhomes having the main entrance 

on Collis Road.  This would add approximately 310 residents to the neighborhood. The 

applicants are proposing to develop this subdivision in accordance with the Putnam County 

Development Codes with townhome and condominium units similar to Enclave at 

Waterfront and Cuscowilla Condominium and Townhome Units. Water and sewer are 

provided by Piedmont Water Resources. According to the applicant, the proposed use will 

place emphasis on lakeshore protection, recreation use of Lake Oconee, and promote 

common open space for property owners. 

The subject property is surrounded by both R-1 and AG-1 zoning, and it fronts one 

collector road (Collis Road) which will require operational improvements to safely 

accommodate the significant traffic volumes that will be generated from this development, 

if this rezoning is approved.   

 

The access point for this development will be Collis Road. Collis Road which is a narrow 

seventeen foot (17 ft) wide two-lane collector road. The minimum width for a county 

collector road is 20 feet. The additional traffic generated from this development 

necessitates widening the entire road to 20 feet beginning at the access point to Wards 

Chapel Road. Adequate right-of-way exists to allow this widening to occur. Collis Road 

terminates at Wards Chapel Road, which is a major collector road. Adequate horizontal 

and vertical sight distance exists to the east and west of Wards Chapel Road for those 

vehicles exiting Collis Road.  The intersection radius at Collis Road & Wards Chapel is 

deficient and will need to be increased to a minimum of 25 ft. to accommodate the 

additional traffic volumes. Based on the traffic study submitted by the applicant, the 

proposed development will increase daily traffic by 70% on Collis Road from the existing 

1,331 two-way trips to 2,261 trips per day. Even though Wards Chapel Road was not part 

of the traffic study, the additional 930 trips on Collis Road will significantly impact the 

traffic flow on Wards Chapel Road as well as the character of this neighborhood along 

Collins Marina and adjoining roads.   

 

Although the Future Land Use Comprehensive Plan is Agriculture/Forestry in this area, 

there are several similar developments within a five-mile radius of the proposed location. 

Recent development trends also indicate that single family and multifamily development 
169



will continue to occur in this area. Even though the development will have a significant 

impact on the area, the following recommendations will help mitigate these adverse 

impacts.  
  

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 3.5 acres on Collis Road [Map 104, 

Parcel 033, District 3] from R-1 to RM-3 with the following conditions: 

(1) Increase the width of Collis Road from 17 feet to 20 feet commencing at the 

entrance into the proposed development and extending to Wards Chapel Road. 

This includes min. 3 ft wide shoulders, roadside ditch reconstruction, eradication 

of the existing striping followed by re-striping the road centerline. Road widening 

can be symmetrical or asymmetrical to the road centerline as necessary to ensure 

adequate roadway shoulder width and drainage  

(2) Improve the existing radii at the intersection of Collis Road and Wards Chapel 

Road to a minimum of 25 feet. This may require ditch reconstruction and culvert 

extensions. All work can be accomplished within the existing right-of-way. 

(3) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer within the required 50 ft buffer along 

the property line on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 

75% buffer within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved 

during the development review phase 
(4) Provide a densely planted landscape buffer, within the required 50 ft buffer, along 

the property line on Doug Lane and where the property abuts residential parcels 

on Collis Marina Road. The additional plantings shall provide a 75% buffer 

within 3 years of planting. Landscape plan and species to be approved during the 

development review phase 
(5) Emergency exit required on Collis Marina Road 

      this rezoning shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the 

plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

  
 

 

New Business 

 
Adjournment 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission meeting will be conducted pursuant and in accordance with O.C.G.A. 

Chapter 36-66. 

 

Notice: All opponents to any rezoning request on the Planning & Zoning Commission and the Board of 

Commission agendas must file a disclosure of campaign contributions with the Planning & Development 

Department within five calendar days prior to public hearings if you have contributed $250.00 or more to an 

elected official in Putnam County within the last five years. 

 

*The Putnam County Board of Commissioners will hear these agenda items on December 17, 2019 at 6:30 P.M., 

in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203. 

 

The full meeting package can be reviewed in the Planning & Development office upon request. 

 
The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the 

number of people in attendance at the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the 

public exceeds the legal limits. 

 

170



The Board of Commissioners’ hearing will be conducted pursuant to O.C.G.A. 50-14-1 and Section 66-159 of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances and meets the requirements of the Zoning Procedures Laws established in 

O.C.G.A 36-66. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 

participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities 

are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting 

at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

171


	Top
	1. 120519 P&Z Call to Order
	2. 120519 P&Z Attendance
	3. 120519 P&Z Rules of Procedures
	4. 120519 P&Z Approval of Minutes
	11-7-19 Minutes

	5. 120519 P&Z Chad & Meghan Shaw
	12-5-19
	ShawVariance
	ShawSitePlan
	053B004ZOOM
	053B004LV
	FutureLandUse053B004
	ShawSR

	6. 120519 P&Z Jonathan Hill, agent for Yancy & Angela Houston
	12-5-19
	HoustonVariance
	103B043026ZOOM
	103B043026LV
	FutureLandUse103B043026
	HoustonSR

	7. 120519 P&Z Gene Holder
	12-5-19
	HolderRezone
	002014003ZOOM
	002014003LV
	FutureLandUse002014003
	HolderSR

	8. 120519 P&Z Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold & Lawrence A. Copelan Jr.
	12-5-19
	McMichael104030
	McMichael104030SitePlan
	104030ZOOM
	104030LV
	FutureLandUse104030
	104030SR

	9. 120519 P&Z Howard McMichael, Jr., agent agent for HJR Oconee, LLC
	12-5-19
	104032
	McMichael104030SitePlan
	104032ZOOM
	104032LV
	FutureLandUse104032
	104032SR

	10. 120519 P&Z Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold & L.A. Copelan Jr.
	12-5-19
	104B001
	McMichael104030SitePlan
	104B001ZOOM
	104B001LV
	FutureLandUse104B001
	104B001SR

	11. 120519 P&Z Howard McMichael, Jr., agent for Millicent Arnold &L.A. Copelan Jr.
	12-5-19
	104033
	McMichael104030SitePlan
	104033ZOOM
	104033LV
	FutureLandUse104033
	104033SR

	Bottom

